
1

WHITE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD

MONDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2023 AT 4:30 P.M.

The White County Board of Commissioners held a Regular Meeting on Monday, November 6, 2023 at 4:30 
p.m. in the Board Room at the Administration Building. Present for the meeting were: Chairman Travis Turner, 
Commissioner Terry Goodger, Commissioner Lyn Holcomb, Commissioner Edwin Nix, Commissioner Craig 
Bryant, County Manager Billy Pittard, Finance Director Jodi Ligon, and County Clerk Shanda Murphy. 

Chairman Turner called the meeting to order.

Following the Pledge of Allegiance, Rev. Dennis Turner – Cleveland First Baptist Church / White County 
Ministerial Alliance – provided the invocation. 

Upon a motion made by Commissioner Bryant, seconded by Commissioner Nix there was a unanimous vote to 
adopt the minutes of the following meetings: October 2, 2023 Regular Meeting, October 16, 2023 Called 
Meeting & Executive Session, and October 30, 2023 Work Session & Called Meeting. 

Ms. Cindy Levi, Avita Community Partners CEO, presented information on Avita, the assistance they provide to 
residents of White County, and resources available (see meeting file for presentation). Ms. Sharon Bucek, White 
County’s appointed representative on the Avita Board of Directors, joined Ms. Levi. The Board of 
Commissioners expressed their appreciation to Ms. Bucek for representing White County on this Board. 

Mr. David Murphy, Director of Public Safety and Mr. Mike Lefevre, Fire Chief, presented Neighborhood Hero 
awards to three (3) firefighters who witnessed and responded to a cardiac arrest on October 6, 2023. He noted 
that their quick response resulted in a positive outcome for the patient. The firefighters recognized were Lanier 
Swafford, Lon Gilbert, and Candice Humphries. Five (5) citizens were also honored for their reaction to a house 
explosion that occurred on Gunns Circle on October 8, 2023. The neighbor’s responded and pulled the wife, 
husband, and child to safety. The citizens recognized were Colt Stovall, Wayne Lovell, Will London, Ryan 
London, and Tony Hooper. Ms. Kelcie McClellon, one of the three (3) rescued expressed her gratitude to those 
whose’ s brave and quick action resulted in her family’s safe exit from the explosion. 

Mr. Clay Pilgrim, Rushton & Company, presented the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial Audit Report. 



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued)

2



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued)

3



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued)

4



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued)

5



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued)

6



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued)

7

Upon presentation of proclamation, November 16-22, 2023 was designated as “Farm-City Week in White 
County”.  The proclamation was accepted on behalf of the White County agricultural community by Chamber 
President Beth Truelove and members of the Agri-Business Committee. 

Ms. Kimberly McEntire, Director of Parks & Recreation, advised the Board that she had been able to obtain 
references for the low bidder on the shade structure project (this item had been tabled at a previous meeting in 
order to allow her to do so). She advised that the references were good, and she recommended awarding the 
contract to Shade America in the amount of $79,610.00 which will provide shade structures for the bleachers 
and playground areas at Yonah Preserve.

Upon a motion made by Commissioner Goodger, seconded by Commissioner Holcomb, there was a unanimous 
vote to award the contract for the shade structure project at Yonah Preserve to Shade America in the amount of 
$79,610.00 – to be funded by SPLOST. 

Upon a motion made by Commissioner Nix, seconded by Commissioner Goodger there was a unanimous vote 
to approve the following board appointments:
 Board of Assessors – Mr. Warren Glover for a three (3) year term to expire December 31, 2026.
 Building Authority – Mr. Larry Freeman for a three (3) year term to expire December 31, 2026,  
                                     Mr. Russell Mobley for a three (3) year term to expire December 31, 2026,
                                     Mr. Mully Ash for a two (2) year term to expire December 31, 2025, and                                
                                     Mr. Marc Greene for a one (1) year term to expire December 31, 2024.

Ms. Jodi Ligon, Finance Director, presented the monthly Financial Status Report (see attached). 



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) 

8 

During County Manager Comments, Mr. Pittard expressed appreciation to Ms. Ligon for her work demonstrated 
with the audit presentation. He also stated that the presentations made at the beginning of the meeting were 
great and he was proud to be a part of this community.  

Chairman Turner asked that Mr. Pittard provide an update on the fill-in of the pool at the Recreation 
Department. Mr. Pittard stated that he was awaiting a quote from Charles Black Construction related to doing 
the fill-in with the equipment they already have onsite for the gym construction project. He also provided 
information on the upcoming bid process regarding operations of the Transfer Station.   

Chairman Turner asked if the Commissioners had any comments. Commissioner Holcomb expressed 
appreciation for Ms. Ligon and to the Road Department for the paving on Campground Road. Commissioner 
Nix also expressed appreciation to Ms. Ligon and for those recognized during the presentations. Chairman 
Turner stated that the presentations demonstrate that biblical values remain in White County.   

Chairman Turner opened the floor for public comment. 

Ms. Lillian Hall stated that short-term rentals (STR’s) had run their course White County and needed to be 
stopped. She said that if limits are set, there needs to be public participation. She said it is not right for the 
applicants to always get the last word in the Commission meeting, the public only gets to comment in the 
Planning Commission meetings, and the public does not elect the Planning Commission. She also stated that she 
did not understand why so many STR’s were coming before the Board if a moratorium was in place.  

Ms. Fio Weaver, stressed the importance of constitutional principles and submitted a typed comment for the 
record which was entered into the meeting file. 

Mr. Mike Mays, asked the status of the proposed new fire station on Duncan Bridge Road. Chairman Turner 
advised that construction plans for the facility are in process and when the plans are complete, they will have a 
better idea on the timeline for the project.  

Ms. Beth Truelove, encouraged participation on December 2, 2023 Christmas Parade.  

With no additional public comments, Chairman Turner closed the floor.  

Chairman Turner explained (in reference to Ms. Hall’s comment) that the STR applications currently being 
heard were in process prior to the current moratorium and the county was required to allow those applicants to 
continue through the process under the current regulations. 

Upon a motion made by Commissioner Goodger, seconded by Commissioner Holcomb, there was a unanimous 
vote to adjourn the meeting. 

The minutes of the November 6, 2023 Regular Meeting were approved as stated this 4th day of December, 2023.  

WHITE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

s/Travis C. Turner 
Travis C. Turner, Chairman 

s/Terry D. Goodger 
Terry D. Goodger, District 1 



November 6, 2023 – Regular Meeting Minutes (continued) 

9 

s/Lyn Holcomb 
Lyn Holcomb, District 2 

s/Edwin Nix 
Edwin Nix, District 3 

s/Craig Bryant 
Craig Bryant, District 4 

s/Shanda Murphy 
Shanda Murphy, County Clerk 


